

ATTACHMENT #1

BYLAWS of the CITY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT BOARD

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of this Board shall be the City and Borough of Juneau International Airport Board ("the Board").

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

The Board was established by Title 5 of the CBJ Municipal Code pursuant to the CBJ Charter to exercise all powers necessary and incidental to operation and maintenance of all airport facilities in the public interest and in a sound business manner. The Board establishes financial and operational policy and appoints the Airport Manager. The Board operates the Airport as an enterprise fund, which means it is self-supporting.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

1. The Board shall consist of a maximum of seven members who will be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Assembly.
2. Members of the Board are appointed for staggered three-year terms and shall serve without compensation. A member shall serve until his or her successor is appointed by the Assembly.
3. Other qualifying factors related to qualifications for membership are contained in CBJ Municipal Code sections 05.01.010 and .030.

ARTICLE IV - MEETINGS

1. Regular meetings of the Board ~~will be hybrid meetings and~~ shall be held on the second ~~Thursday~~ of each month at ~~6:00~~ p.m. in the ~~Alaska Room~~ of the Airport Terminal ~~and streamed virtually~~, unless otherwise noticed.
2. ~~Meetings shall be open to the public and conducted according to Robert's Rules of Order. Notice of the meeting shall appear as published by the City & Borough of Juneau's public notice system. Participation remotely shall be allowed for regular, special, and committee meetings of the Board.~~

Deleted: Wednesday

Deleted: 7:00

Deleted: Aurora Room

Deleted: .

Deleted: in the weekly borough calendar

Deleted: in the local newspaper

Deleted: June

ATTACHMENT #1

3. Special meetings may be called at any time by the Chair or at the request of the Committee Chairs. At least two business days' notice shall be given and filed with the CBJ Clerk.

Deleted: Board.

Deleted: Subc

4. Minutes of regular meetings shall be distributed by Airport staff to members at least seven days prior to the next regular meeting. Minutes of special meetings shall be distributed to members as soon as possible after the meeting.

5. Upon advising the Board or Committee Chair in sufficient time for Airport staff to make the necessary technical arrangements, a member who is unable to physically attend a meeting may attend a regular or special Board meeting or a committee meeting by telephone or virtually.

Deleted: by

Deleted: electronic communication

6. A quorum of the Board shall consist of a majority of the membership, including those present electronically and virtually. A quorum must be present for any business to be conducted.

7. Voting shall be by roll call vote or by general consent (no objection). In a roll call vote the Chair shall be required to vote. A majority vote of the Board membership is needed to approve any action.

ARTICLE V – CONFLICT OF INTEREST

If a member has either a financial or a personal conflict of interest, the member shall not deliberate or vote on any matter in which he or she has such an interest. A member who is involved in a matter that may result in a conflict of interest shall disclose the matter on the public record and asked to be excused from the discussion and official action on the matter. The presiding officer may determine whether the member's involvement would be a conflict of interest. The presiding officer's decision may be overridden by a majority vote of the Board. See CBJ Conflict of Interest Code, Sections 01.45.010 - .080 and 01.45.100.

Deleted: may

Deleted: shall

ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS

The officers of the Board shall consist of a Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary. Officers shall hold offices for one year or until their successors are elected. The election of officers shall take place in July (or as soon as new Board Members are appointed), with the officers to begin their duties at their first meeting after their election.

Deleted: Election

Duties of the **Chair** shall include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Presiding at all regular and special meetings of the Board.
2. Ensuring that all correspondence and business of the Board is carried out.
3. Acting as spokesman for the Board.
4. Appointing committees, including ad hoc committees and task forces of the Board as deemed necessary.

Deleted: Insuring

Deleted: June

ATTACHMENT #1

5. Acting as liaison between the Board and the CBJ Assembly.
6. In consultation with the Airport Manager, preparing the agenda for each meeting.

Duties of the **Vice Chair** shall be to preside in the absence of the Chair and perform all the duties of that office. In the absence of the Secretary, the Vice Chair will perform the duties of the Secretary.

Duties of the **Secretary** shall include reviewing and giving tentative approval to minutes of all regular and special meetings of the Board, as prepared by Airport staff, prior to the distribution of the draft minutes to other members of the Board and the public.

ARTICLE VII – STANDING COMMITTEES

The standing Committees of the Board shall be the Finance Committee and the Operations Committee and any other committee designated and approved by a majority of the Board.

The Chair shall appoint the members of the standing committees of the Board, designating one member to serve as the chair of each committee. Each standing committee shall consist of at least three members.

Duties of the standing committees shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

1. Finance Committee: Consider and make recommendations to the full Board regarding:
 - a. the Airport Manager's proposed operating and capital budgets;
 - b. Airport rates and charges; and
 - c. All other items that have or may have a financial impact on the Airport.
2. Operations Committee: Consider and make recommendations to the full Board regarding any issue that has or may have an operational impact on the Airport.

Action(s) recommended by the standing committees shall be subject to approval by a majority of the Board members at a Regular or Special meeting.

ARTICLE VIII – AIRPORT MANAGER

The Airport Manager serves at the pleasure of the Board and shall be responsible for the hiring and/or firing of airport personnel. Subject to direction from the Board, the Airport Manager shall be responsible for the general supervision and the administration of the business and affairs of the Juneau International Airport.

Deleted: June

ATTACHMENT #1

ARTICLE IX – EVALUATION OF THE AIRPORT MANAGER

The Board, meeting in executive session, shall evaluate the performance of the Airport Manager at least once each year, prior to the anniversary date of the Airport Manager's employment. Results of the evaluation shall then be discussed with the Airport Manager, either in executive or public session as desired by the Airport Manager, who may concur or disagree with the Board's evaluation. The Board's evaluation shall determine whether the Airport Manager is entitled to an increase in salary.

ARTICLE X – AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended or revoked by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the Board in any regular meeting, provided the notice of such meeting shall have contained a copy of the proposed amendment or revocation.

Approved and adopted by the Board this 8th day of August 2024,

Deleted: 11th of February 2004

Deleted: 9th of May 20

Deleted: 17

Formatted: Superscript

Dan Spencer, Chair

Deleted: Joe Heueisen

Attest:

Jodi Garza, Secretary

Deleted: Pete Carlson

Deleted: Angela Rodell

Deleted: June